1: 32: 55 PM

CALL TO ORDER

Co-Chair

HOUSE FI NANCE COW TTEE
February 5, 2015
1:32 p.m

Neurman called the House Finance Commttee neeting

to order at 1:32 p.m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Representati ve
Representative
Representati ve
Representati ve
Representative
Representati ve
Representati ve
Representative
Representati ve
Representati ve
Representative

VEMBERS ABSENT

None

ALSO PRESENT

Mar k Neuman, Co- Chair

St eve Thonpson, Co-Chair
Dan Saddl er, Vice-Chair
Bryce Edgnon

Les Gara

Lynn Gattis

David Guttenberg
Scott Kawasaki
Cat hy Munoz
Lance Pruitt
Tamm e W1 son

Fred Parady, Acting Conm ssioner, Departnent of Commerce,
Community, and Econom c Devel opnent; Catherine Reardon,
Director, Departnent of Commerce, Conmunity and Econonic
Devel opnent; Hannah Lager, Budget WManager, Departnent of
Commerce, Conmunity and Econom ¢ Devel opnent; Pat Pitney,
Director, Ofice of Mnagenent and Budget, Ofice of the
Governor; Margaret Brodie, Director, Division of Health
Care Services, Departnent of Health and Social Services;
Sana Efird, Assistant Comm ssioner, Departnent of Health
and Soci al Services; Representative Chris Tuck.

SUMVARY

HB 72 APPROP: OPERATI NG BUDGET/ LOANS/ FUNDS

House Fi nance Committee 1

02/05/15 1:32 P.M



HB 72 was HEARD and HELD in commttee for further
consi derati on.

HB 73 APPROP: MENTAL HEALTH BUDGET

HB 73 was HEARD and HELD in commttee for further
consi derati on.

FY 16 BUDGET OVERVI EW DEPARTMENT OF COMVERCE, COMMUNITY
AND ECONOM C DEVELOPMENT

FY 15 GOVERNCOR S SUPPLEMENTAL BUDGET OVERVI EW
#hb72

#hb73
HOUSE BILL NO. 72

"An Act neking appropriations for the operating and
| oan program expenses of state governnment and for
certain pr ogr ans, capitalizing funds, maki ng
reappropriations, and nmaking appropriations under art.
| X, sec. 17(c), Constitution of the State of Al aska,
from the constitutional budget reserve fund; and
providing for an effective date."

HOUSE BI LL NO. 73

"An Act making appropriations for the operating and
capi tal expenses of t he state's i nt egrated
conprehensi ve nental health program and providing for
an effective date."

1: 33: 38 PM

"FY 16 BUDGET OVERVI EW DEPARTMENT OF COWMVERCE, COVMUNI TY
AND ECONOM C DEVELOPMENT

1: 33: 52 PM

FRED PARADY, ACTING COW SSI ONER, DEPARTMENT OF COMVERCE,
COVMUNI TY, AND ECONOM C DEVELOPMENT (DCCED), introduced
departnent staff. He provided a PowerPoint presentation
titled "Departnent of Commerce, Community and Econom c
Devel opnment Departnent Overview," dated February 5, 2015
(copy on file). He discussed the departnent organization on
slide 2. The departnent's six corporate entities included
the Al aska Energy Authority (AEA), the Al aska Industrial

House Fi nance Conmmittee 2 02/05/15 1:32 P. M



Devel opnment and Export Authority (AIDEA), the Al aska
Gasl i ne Devel opnent Corporation (AGDC), the Al aska Seafood
Marketing Institute (ASM), the Alcoholic Beverage Control
Board, and the Regulatory Conm ssion of Al aska (RCA). The
departnment's six core divisions included Admnistrative
Services; Banking and Securities; Insurance; Conmunity and
Regi onal Affairs; Econom c Devel opnment; and Corporations,
Busi ness and Professional Licensing. He noted that the
departnent's mission was to pronote strong communities, a
heal thy econonmy, and to protect consuners in Al aska. He
descri bed the departnent as a conglonerate, which had a set
of functions centering on its m ssion statenent.

Acting Comm ssioner Parady turned to a pie chart on slide 3
showi ng the departnent's funding distribution by agency and
division in the governor's FY 16 anended budget. The chart
illustrated that the six corporations accounted for $123
mllion of the budget and the six core divisions accounted
for $83.5 mllion. He remarked that of the departnent's
$207 mllion budget, $41 mllion resided in Power Cost
Equalization (PCE) funds. He briefly highlighted a pie
chart on slide 4 showi ng the DCCED budget by core services;
40 percent of the chart was allocated to sustainable
energy, 28 percent went to economc growth, 18 percent went
to consumer protection, and 14 percent went to strong
comunities. He addressed econonmic growh, which included
the Division of Economic Developnent, AIDEA, and ASM
(slide 5).

1: 36: 45 PM

Acting Commi ssioner Parady continued to speak to econom c
growm h, specifically in regards to the D vision of Economc
Devel opment (slide 6). The division processed 261 | oans for
$29.1 mllion across 10 loan prograns, the majority
i ncluded 237 in the Commercial Fishing Revolving Loan Fund.
He discussed that funds supporting tourism nmarketing
resided within the division; the prior year the |egislature
had created the Al aska Tourism Marketing Board, which acted
as an advisory board to the division. He added that the
contracts for tourism marketing roughly totaled $15 nmillion
and resided in the division. Tourism marketing generated
800, 000 information requests, 220,000 trips, and 700,000
visitors. He noted that the data was based on follow up
surveys. Additionally, the Division of Econom c Devel opnent
conducted partnerships with industry and the University of
Al aska (UA) to support resource developnent efforts to

House Fi nance Conmmittee 3 02/05/15 1:32 P. M



devel op new i ndustry. As an exanple he referenced a January
1, 2015 report on unmanned aircraft systens and econonic
devel opment strategy for Al aska, which had been devel oped
in conjunction with UA-Fairbanks. The concept was to take
advantage of Al aska's airspace in the context of research
on commercial applications of unnmanned aerial vehicles.
Anot her exanple included a report from the prior fall by
the Alaska Maritinme Industrial Support Sector; the report
assessed the age of the fishing fleet and how to rebuild
the fleet in Al aska-based shipyards. He noted that the
di vi si on was al so responsi bl e for generating t he
m ning/ mnerals report.

1: 38: 16 PM

Co-Chair Neuman recognized that Representative Edgnon
joined the commttee.

Co-Chair Neuman had spoken wth nenbers of the tourist
industry and had suggested including links to the state
parks website on Al aska tourism advertisenents. He stressed
that state parks were a significant part of the state's
attraction. He asked the departnment to help develop the
i dea.

Acting Conm ssioner Parady appreciated the suggestion and
woul d follow up on it.

Co-Chair Neurman referred to the brand "Made in Al aska." He
t hought there should be shirts, hats, and other itens for
the Al aska state parks. He thought there should be further
marketing for the state. He believed ASM should do the
sane.

1: 40: 42 PM

Acting Comm ssioner Parady made note of the suggestion. He
remarked that the prior fall a Made in Al aska honme had been
constructed in Anchorage; the predomnant materials had
been manufactured in Alaska, including the wood floors,
cabi nets, w ndows, etcetera. He turned to slide 7 and
di scussed Al DEA on slide 7:

e $17.6 mllion FY2016 divi dend approved

* Nearly $700 nmillion in private sector investnent
| everaged (projected)

House Fi nance Conmmittee 4 02/05/15 1:32 P. M



e Projects and investnents will create or retain nearly
1,500 construction jobs and over 1,000 permanent | obs
(proj ected)

Co- Chair Neuman noted that Representative Pruitt had joined
t he neeting.

Acting Comm ssioner Parady spoke to ASM on slide 8. He
communi cated that ASM was the "heartbeat"” of Alaska's
primary enploynment industry; the fishing industry generated
63,000 jobs. He noted that the fisheries export value had
been increased to alnost 85 percent to $3.2 billion in the
past ten years. He addressed the Responsible Fisheries
Managenment Initiative and explained that Al aska's seafood
had been "held hostage" to a third-party entity (the
Maritime Stewardship Council) that was certifying the
sustainability of the state's fisheries. Consequently, when
the entity had certified that Russian Pollock was
sustai nable, the value of the Alaska Pollock catch dropped
by 25 percent. He reasoned that no one was nore capabl e of
certifying the sustainability of Alaska' s fisheries than
Al aska. He relayed that the Responsible Fisheries
Managenment designation (generated by ASM) was recognized
in the mrket. He explained that the sustainability
desi gnati on was necessary to ent er certain | ar ge
procurenent chains (e.g. Walmart and ot hers).

Co-Chair Neuman asked if ASM verified that fish comng
from Al aska wer e caught in sust ai nabl e fishery
environnents. Acting Conm ssioner Parady replied in the
affirmative.

Co-Chair Thonpson asked if other entity continued to
increase the fees it charged to certify Al aska's fisheries
as sustainable. He asked if the entity had classified
Al aska's fisheries as unsustainable because Al aska had not
paid the fee. Acting Comm ssioner Parady replied that the
entity had withdrawn its certification, which had resulted
in the state losing market share. However, the departnent
had created an alternative; the brand of wild caught Al aska
fish was i nmensely valuable to the state.

Co-Chair Neuman spoke to his <concern that the Yukon
Kuskokwi m region had to stop subsistence fisheries due to
problenms. He noted that 8 out of 12 stock of concerns cane
from the Susitna River Valley. He wondered how the issue
impacted the sustainable fishery certification. Acting

House Fi nance Conmmittee 5 02/05/15 1:32 P. M



Comm ssi oner Parady would speak to ASM and woul d foll ow up
wi th an answer.

1:45: 26 PM

Representative Gara asked how many visitors the state had
in the year referenced on slide 6. Acting Comm ssioner
Parady replied that he did not know the specific figure. He
added that the information shown on slide 6 reflected
additional tourism generated from the state's marketing
effort based on a series of followup surveys.

Acting Conm ssioner Parady returned to slide 8 and noted
that the voluntary fish tax was established at 0.5 percent
of ex-vessel value, which generated roughly $12 mllion. He
noved to slide 10 related to affordable energy. He
conmuni cated that AEA had dispersed nearly $40 nmillion in
PCE grant paynments to $188 comunities in FY 14. He
di scussed that PCE subsidized the first 500 kilowatt hours
of energy into a hone. He elaborated that the RCA was
responsible for certifying the wutilities as neeting
required criteria and being eligible for a subsidy. He read
fromslide 10:

e 53 of 114 rural power system upgrades conpl eted

* 22 projects funded through the Enmerging Energy
Technol ogy Fund program

e Annual fuel savings from the Renewable Energy Fund
projected to be 20 mllion gallons of di esel
equi valent in 2016

Co-Chair Neuman noted the absence of a list of the 22
projects funded through the Enmerging Energy Technol ogy Fund
that had been conpleted and how rnuch it could cost to
conplete the renmaining projects. He stressed that the slide
did not contain any financial i nformation. Acti ng
Comm ssioner Parady replied that he wuld provide a
spreadsheet with the detailed information.

Representative Edgnon noted that the Emerging Energy
Technology Fund had not been funded the prior year;
therefore, he reasoned that the 22 projects went back at
| east two years. He relayed that he sat on the advisory
committee for the Renewabl e Energy Grant Fund and expl ai ned
that the fund had done sonme great things, but wth a
decreasi ng amount of funding; prior funding had been $22

House Fi nance Conmmittee 6 02/05/15 1:32 P. M



mllion, and the funding recomrendation for the current
year was $15 mlli on.

Representative Gattis requested a list of projects that
were not on the list of 22 projects that were needed. She
wondered which projects had been funded that had not been
successful. She used an energency generator situation in
Tul uksak, Al aska as an exanpl e.

1:49: 22 PM

Acting Commi ssioner Parady would foll ow up. He spoke to the
AGDC on slide 11. He relayed that AGDC continued on work to
synchroni ze the timng of the AKLNG [Al aska Liquid Natura
Gas] and ASAP (Al aska Stand Alone Pipeline) projects. He
noted that the state had conpleted the ASAP Class 3 cost
estimate (+/- 20 percent), which had produced new burner
tip estimates of $11.50 to $14.00 for Fairbanks and $11.50
to $14.50 for Anchorage. He conmunicated that the
synchroni zation of the two projects was ongoi ng.

Co- Chair Neuman noted that the agencies would present to
the committee in the future regarding their individual
budget s.

Acting Comm ssioner Parady turned to slides 12 and 13
pertaining to strong comunities and the role of the
Division of Community and Regional Affairs. He shared that
state statute (Article 10 Section 14) required the
exi stence of a state agency to support the devel opnment of
capacity in local governnent. He detailed that the division
had 40 |ocal governnent specialists and grants personnel
located in six regional offices; the division visited 150
to 170 communities annually and provided rural wutility
busi ness advi sor services, bulk fuel |oans, |ocal boundary
commi ssion, nunicipal land trust, Quick Books training, and
other for rural communities. He shared that the | ocal
boundary conm ssion approved the incorporation of Edna Bay,
creating Alaska's first new city in ten years. He noted the
suppl erment al request of $75, 000 for Edna Bay' s
organi zation, which was statutorily required ($50,000 in
year one, and $25,000 in year two). The division had

distributed $85 mllion to 307 comunities through revenue
sharing and other prograns (i.e. paynent in lieu of taxes
(PILT), nat i onal f orest receipts, shared fisheries,

business tax, and fisheries resource landing tax). The
division was working to cross-train its staff to deliver

House Fi nance Conmmittee 7 02/05/15 1:32 P. M



secondary information and assistance to |ocal governnents.
For exanple, the trained staff could assist communities
wth arrearages in their Public Enployees’ Reti renent
System (PERS) accounts by connecting them wth the
appropri ate person.

Co- Chair Neuman di scussed that revenue sharing had not been
funded in the governor's proposed budget. He believed there
was a good possibility that revenue sharing would be
elimnated altogether given the deficits facing the state.
He wondered how the state would pay for assistance provided
to conmunities for essential services. He remarked on the
$87 nmillion distributed to 307 communities that may not be
receiving any noney in the future. He wondered how the
department would help communities prepare for the loss in
f unds.

Acting Commi ssioner Parady replied that it would depend
partially on the actions of the legislature as to what
options would be available. He recognized that all of the
budget decisions the |egislature was considering were tight
and interconnected. He reasoned that the comunity revenue
sharing funds were distributed based on the bal ance on June
30. He detailed that the draw had been $57 nillion the past
year; if the amount could be replenished, the draw would
continue at the sane rate; however, if it was reduced it
would lead to reduced community revenue sharing funds. He
recently learned that the comunity revenue sharing funds
were distributed to each community and then on a per capita
basis, which neant the inpact of the reduced funding |eve

woul d be felt in the nore popul ated areas first.

Co-Chair Neuman remarked that the governor's proposed
budget did not include revenue sharing funds. He wondered
if the departnment would assist comunities in dealing with
the | oss of funds.

1:56: 23 PM

Acting Comm ssioner Parady replied that he would follow up
on the question.

Co- Chair Thonpson remarked that w thout any funding there
would be $54 million to distribute in the current year,
around $30 million the following year, $17 mllion the year
after, and would then go down to zero. He referred to a
list showi ng that revenue sharing accounted for as nuch as

House Fi nance Conmmittee 8 02/05/15 1:32 P. M



94 percent of the budget in sone small comunities. He
believed that w thout the funding many conmunities would
have to close their doors. He remarked that there were no
bankruptcy laws for a conmunity; there was nothing in
statute showing what would happen to the assets or
outlining who would take care of them He added that sone
of the communities had bond paynents the state would have
to take over. He stressed that there were many consequences
that would result from an absence of revenue sharing funds,
whi ch required consi deration.

Acting Commi ssioner Parady responded that he had studied
the spreadsheet on the percentage of each comunity's
budget was funded by revenue sharing. He agreed that sone
comuni ti es depended on revenue sharing for over 90 percent
of their budget. He had not recognized the bankruptcy
conplications and believed the issue needed further study.

Representative Edgnon relayed that for his district,
revenue sharing fell into the core services category. He
clarified that revenue sharing was funded at $57 nmillion in
the governor's current budget, even though no noney was
being added to the fund itself. He noted that the prior
year it had been funded at $52 nillion.

Representative WIson believed there had been a point in
ti me when revenue sharing had not existed. She wondered how
communities had becone reliant on the funds. She asked if
there had been federal funds communities had received in
the past that were no |onger avail able, which had increased
reliance on revenue sharing.

Acting Conm ssioner Parady replied that Edna Bay was the
first new community incorporated within the past ten years
and revenue sharing had returned within that period. He did
not believe there had been comunities formng for revenue
sharing in the past decade.

Co-Chair Neunman al so questioned whether the Local Boundary
Comm ssion had planned on having revenue sharing as part of
its governnental organization funds.

Representative Gara noted that revenue sharing would be a

conundrum for all Jlegislators. He agreed wth Co-Chair
Thonmpson that the issue was especially inportant for small
communities. He thought it wuld be useful for the

departnment to provide a history of revenue sharing to the

House Fi nance Conmmittee 9 02/05/15 1:32 P. M



conmittee. He stated that it had been over $100 mllion at
one point in tine. He surmsed that communities that could
afford it the nost would have to take sone of the hits. He
believed a significant discussion was necessary on the
i ssue.

Co-Chair Neuman referred to a recent neeting he had wth
the comm ssioner about communities and the budget. He
remarked on DCCED's mssion statement, which included
strong conmunities. He discussed an exanple of a comunity
where the school was the nucleus that provided a place for
exercise and all types of community gatherings. He wondered
if the departnent was working on a plan to deal with the
situation given the budget deficit. He stated that the
|l egislators were citizen-based and depended on the
departnment's recomendations to the committee. He had not
heard a plan as of yet.

Acting Conm ssioner Parady shared that in the past he had
worked as the <chief operating officer for a schoo
district. He agreed that schools were a hub for wedding
receptions, funerals, sporting events, Head Start, neals,
and other. He remarked that one of the conundruns that
woul d face legislators was related to school financing and
the loss of federal receipts for comunities. He believed
the question was well placed and needed answering by the
departnment. He relayed that the departnent would follow up
on the question.

Co- Chair Neuman relayed that there was a limted anount of
funding to distribute between all departnents, which nade
receiving the information inportant.

2:02: 45 PM

Acting Comm ssioner Parady returned to slide 13 and rel ayed
that the Division of Comunity and Regional Affairs had
1,929 capital grants open with a total of $2 billion in
awards. He detailed that the naned-entity |egislative
grants resided in the division and were admnistered
efficiently and effectively. He added that the grants were
admnistered with a passion for helping people solve
probl ens. He noted that the grants had a five-year lifetine
and he expected the nunbers to be shrinking. He concl uded
that the current grants were still in the pipeline to do
good wor K.

House Fi nance Conmmittee 10 02/05/15 1:32 P. M



Representative Quttenberg addressed broadband access. He
spoke to the broadband task-force DCCED had fornmulated,
that had come out with a $1 billion price tag. He stated
that salnmon fishing, marketing, school districts, AEA
remote energy projects, and everything the state touched on
was hel ped or hindered by broadband. He believed broadband
was in an abysmal state in Alaska. He noted that his
broadband capability was mnarginal at best in his hone
out side of Fairbanks. He stated that broadband needed to be
strengthened to build a strong state and conmunity. He
remarked that nuch of what was needed was currently in
pl ace due to the tel ecomunication industry, but nuch of it
needed a link to make the chain longer. He urged the
department to work on a plan. He stated that it was
pointless to provide students with technology if they did
not have the ability to access the internet. He enphasized
the inportance of nore reliable and faster internet. He
understood that it my not be possible to inplement a
strategy at present, but he believed it was needed for the
future.

Acting Conm ssioner Parady |inked back to Representative
Gattis's comments on the Tuluksak generator. He stated that
in a nore ideal broadband world it would be possible to
remotely nonitor various power systens. He shared that in
Nui gsut, Al aska there had been a project to distribute gas
in the community, which had a renote capacity. He continued
that Al aska was working to achieve 10 negabits per second
(mbps) when the rest of the country had speeds of 100 nbps.
He agreed that Alaska was wefully behind related to
br oadband speed. He woul d continue to address the issue.

2: 06: 43 PM

Acting Conm ssioner Parady discussed consuner protection on
slide 14. He detailed that consuner protection activities
were regulations that were applied to protect the consumers
of Al aska. He spoke to the Al cohol Beverage Control (ABQC
Board on slide 15; its mssion was to protect the public
from alcoholic beverage abuse by enforcing state |[|aws
regul ati ng al coholic beverage commerce. There were nearly
1,900 active liquor licenses in 2014. He believed that
since the board's transition to DCCED, the agency was doi ng
a good job straddling the divide between public health
substance abuse concerns and the responsible industry
concerns. He spoke highly of the board's current director
Cynthia Franklin. He addressed a two-year effort to rewite

House Fi nance Committee 11 02/05/15 1:32 P. M



Title 4 (with 60 or 70 stakeholders); the rewite would be
before the conmttee later in the day. He relayed that the
timng would provide a useful foundation and transition
into the upcom ng nmarijuana regul ations.

Vi ce-Chair Saddler asked if there was any dimnution of the
effectiveness of the ABC Board as a public safety function
since its transfer from the Departnment of Public Safety.
Acting Comm ssioner Parady replied in the negative. He
believed the transition had gone well. He remarked that
there had been sone "sweat equity" anongst people wth
differing views throughout the process, but he believed the
result had been strengthening.

Vice-Chair Saddler asked if there was a stronger function
in collaboration with the industry (i.e. increased support
for t he i ndustry's busi ness operations). Acti ng
Comm ssi oner Par ady replied t hat there were some
conprom ses represented in the Title 4 legislation. One
conprom se was related to the consunption of alcohol by
mnors; the penalty was |essened, but it was nore
universally enforceable. He explained that the penalty
under current statute was difficult for officers to
i npl enent; therefore, there was not always follow through.
He furthered that by decreasing the offense and nmaking it
easier to inplenent, the accuracy of the record of mnors
and adults providing mnors with alcohol would increase. He
noted the departnent's excitenment at bringing the Title 4
rewite before the conmttee.

Vice-Chair Saddler renarked that there had been sone
concern about the transfer of the ABC Board to DCCED

therefore, he was glad to hear things were going well from
a public safety standpoint.

Representative Gara recalled a presentation by several
pi peline conpani es. He remarked that one conpany's
representative had told the conmttee that the state would
be rich if their conpany was chosen. He stated there had
been a simlar tenor in some of the marijuana debate; if
the marijuana initiative becane law, the state would be
able to levy taxes on the substance. He asked if the
adm ni stration anti ci pat ed presenting mari j uana t ax
| egislation in the current year.

Acting Comm ssioner Parady replied in the negative. He
detailed that the departnent was in a nine-nonth regulatory

House Fi nance Committee 12 02/05/15 1:32 P. M



witing process. He furthered that the bill draft to
devel op the marijuana control board had opened that day. He
detailed that conceptually the departnment was working to
house an al cohol and a marijuana board under the ABC Board
agency. The departnent was al so considering reassigning its
experienced alcohol examners to marijuana and hiring new
al cohol exam ners, given that the alcohol functions were
wel | established. He communicated that the departnment was
beginning to think its way through the regulatory and
operating process. He could not speak to the tax conponent,
whi ch was under the purview of the Department of Revenue.

2:11:40 PM

Representative Gara asked if commercial sales of marijuana
would begin with no tax inplenmented. Acting Conm ssioner
Parady replied in the negative. He stated that work was in
pr ogr ess.

Co- Chair Neuman asked for the anount of the supplenental
PSUM request (slide 15). Acting Comm ssioner Parady replied
that the request was for $785,000. Co-Chair Neuman asked
for the nmeaning of PSUM Acting Conmi ssioner Parady replied
that the acronym stood for the production, sale, and use of
marij uana. He wondered what woul d  happen if t he
suppl emental was not approved. Acting Comn ssioner Parady
replied that a denial of the funds would essentially be an
unal l ocated cut to the departnent. The departnent would
have to perform the functions; therefore, he would cross
that bridge when he cane to it down the road if the funds
wer e not approved.

Co-Chair Neuman replied that the admnistration could
introduce legislation that would go through the commttee
and public process to determne the need, how it would be
i npl ement ed, and who woul d be on the board.

Acting Comm ssioner Parady was aware of a bill draft
regarding a [marijuana]l board. He added that the issue was
governed by the [voter] initiative. He stated that there
were issues in the area that he had never dreaned of. He
turned to slide 16 pertaining to the RCA He communicated
that the RCA had significantly inproved processes and
m nimzed costs to ratepayers and conpanies by enabling e-
filing. He noted that e-filing was currently being extended
to small rural tel ephone conpanies. He relayed that the RCA
coll aborated with the Regulatory Assistance Project to

House Fi nance Conmmittee 13 02/05/15 1:32 P. M



| oner costs and to certify utilities for conpliance for the
PCE Fund, which led to distributions. He discussed the
Di vi sion of Banking and Securities on slide 17:

e Contributed $13.2 million of licensing fee and fine
recei pts to the general fund
 Facilitated $95.0 in restitution paynents to Al askans
» License, register, charter and exam ne:
o Investnents and Securities firnms, registrations
and filings
0 ANCSA proxy filings and inquiries
o Mortgage broker/lenders
o Money service busi nesses (e.g., noney
transmtters, currency exchangers)

o State depository and non-depository institutions
e Sponsored the Anchorage Fraud Summt in Septenber 2013

Vice-Chair Saddler referred back to slide 16 and asked for
i nformati on about the Regulatory Assistance Project. Acting
Comm ssioner Parady replied that the project was a national
effort.

Vi ce-Chair Saddler asked if the project came at no cost to
the state or had associated federal funding. Acting
Comm ssioner Parady replied that the project was federally
funded. He offered to provide additional detail.

Vi ce-Chair Saddler asked how well the RCA was doing. He
referred to work on the pipeline reauthorization. He
wondered if the agency was working efficiently and if it
had any needs. Acting Conm ssioner Parady replied RCA was
stable. The agency had a range of rate filings and other
cases before it, but the chairnman had not indicated any
deficit.

2:15:51 PM

Acting Conm ssioner Parady discussed the Division of
Cor porati ons, Business and Professional Licensing (CBPL) on
slide 18. He detailed that there were 68,000 business
licenses, 67,000 professional |icenses, slightly over 6,500
corporation licenses, and 43 licensing prograns. He noted
that the agency generated fees. He relayed that the nunber

of professional |icenses were up 5 percent since 2013, its
open-to-close case time had decreased by half, and it had
worked hard to control internal costs to reduce |ega

House Fi nance Committee 14 02/05/15 1:32 P. M



expenses by 34 percent. The issues had been before the
Legi sl ative Budget and Audit Committee; by controlling the
indirect costs there was a strong effort to control the
rate of i ncrease in pr of essi onal | i censes, whi ch
represented a success for the division.

Representative WIson asked if all of the state's boards
were under CBPL. Acting Comm ssioner Parady replied in the
negati ve. For exanple, teachers were not i ncl uded.

Representative W/Ison thought there were a couple hundred
boards. Acting Conm ssioner Parady replied that there were
43 boards, 3 of which were new including nmassage
t her api sts, behavi or anal ysts, and contractors.

Representative Wl son asked if the 43 boards were all self-
sufficient. Acting Conm ssioner Parady replied in the
negative; however, substantial progress had been nmade. He
added that the departnment was awaiting further scrutiny of
the issues by Representative Pruitt and the legislative
budget subcommttee for the departnent.

Vi ce-Chair Saddler communicated that there were regul atory
and professional licensing boards and approxinmately 170
advi sory boards.

Representative WIson asked if the other advisory boards
fell under a specific agency. Acting Comm ssioner Parady
replied that the boards were housed across state
governnent. He noted that the 43 professional |icenses were
housed i n CBPL.

2:19: 05 PM

Acting Conm ssioner Parady turned to the Division of
| nsurance on slide 19:

e Over $3.4 billion in total premumwitten in CY2013
e Collected $64 mllion in taxes and fees in FY2014

e |ssued 47,376 |icenses, an increase of alnpbst 8
percent over FY2013

e (Opened and closed 245 of 300 conplaints, a closure
rate of 85 percent

e $216.0 returned to consuners in FY2014
* Opened 79 and cl osed 115 investigations

House Fi nance Conmmittee 15 02/05/15 1:32 P. M



e Conducted first joint investigation with the Division
of Banking and Securities

Acting Conm ssioner Parady elaborated that the departnent
was working diligently to synergize investigative resources
across its divisions. He spoke to challenges for the
departnment on slide 20:

e High cost of energy inpacts residents, businesses and
econoni ¢ devel opnent efforts

e G@ps 1in critical infrastructure including roads
ports, conmunications, processing facilities

* Uncertainty hanpering private investnent

e Maintain awareness in national and internationa
mar ket s about Al aska products and services

e Ceographic scale inpacts logistics and transportation
costs

* New programresponsibilities (PSUM

Acting Comm ssioner Parady provided a |ookback of the
departnent's budget on slide 21. The FY 16 governor's
anended budget was slightly below $207 mllion, which
represented a decrease of approximately $7.5 mllion. There
was a decrease in unrestricted general fund from $40.5
mllion to $35.5 mllion, which represented an 8 percent
decrease. He provided a |ookback of the DCCED share of
total agency operations from 2007 to present (general fund
only) on slide 22. The departnent accounted for between
2.16 and 3.06 percent of total agency operations; it
accounted for 2.37 percent in the current year. He noved to
anot her | ookback on slide 23 showi ng DCCED appropriations
(general fund only) by division. He pointed to a spike in
the purple line representing AEA in 2009 where PCE had been
fully funded with an additional $23 million. A spike in the
blue line representing ASM indicated the reclassification
of its funds from general fund.

CATHERI NE  REARDON, DI RECTOR, DEPARTMENT OF COMMERCE,
COVMUNI TY AND ECONOM C DEVELOPMENT, clarified that the ASM
funds were reclassified from general fund to statutory
desi gnat ed program receipts.

Acting Conm ssioner Parady addressed a historical chart
slide 24 representing DCCED appropriations (all funds). He
noted that simlar spikes in appropriations occurred for
simlar reasons. He discussed economc growh on slide 25.

House Fi nance Conmmittee 16 02/05/15 1:32 P. M



The departnent's target was to create or retain 500 jobs
annually. He expressed dissatisfaction wth the chart
because the target did not nove; he did not believe it was
aggressive enough. He noted that the chart represented an
artifact of past choices, which he believed the departnent
needed to revisit.

2:22: 58 PM

Acting Conmmi ssioner Parady addressed slide 26 related to
the department's ability to support nunicipal governnents
in their ability to provide essential public services. The
percentage of |ocal governnents providing essential public
services had noved up towards 100 percent, which remained
the departnent's target. The chart data included basic life
services such as clean drinking water, power plants, and
ot her .

Vi ce-Chair Saddler pointed to slide 25 related to retaining
j obs. He wondered how to neasure how well the departnent
was retaining existing jobs. He believed it would allow the
departnment to claim credit for the vast mmjority of the
jobs that would remain. Acting Conm ssioner Parady agreed
and believed the chart was ill founded. He relayed that the
chart data stemmed |argely from Al DEA and was correlated to
the agency's loan prograns, which a subset of a nore
specific target.

Representative Gara saw a gap in sone of the nunbers on
slide 6. He looked at the bullet indicating that tourism
mar keti ng had generated 700,000 visitors. He stated that a
person doing an internet search about travel to Al aska
could end up on a car rental, fishing guide, hotel, or
private website. He reasoned that just because a person
visited the state's travel website did not nmean the website
was responsible for the person's decision to visit the
state. He wondered if the departnent could convince the
conmittee that the 700,000 visitors would not cone to
Alaska if they did not visit the state's website.

Acting Conm ssioner Parady answered that the data was not
website generated. He explained the departnent sent follow
up surveys of the 800,000 individuals who requested
information. The survey |ooked at how many of the
individuals cane to the state and how nmany trips they took.
He believed the information was germane directly to the
information requests. He agreed that people may take a

House Fi nance Committee 17 02/05/15 1:32 P. M



mul ti - pronged approach, which could also include internet
searches. He offered to follow up with additional detail.

Co-Chair Thonpson noted that the state was putting $15
mllion to $16 mllion into tourism marketing. He renarked
that the tourism industry clainmed that one of the cruise
lines was spending $50 million to bring people to Al aska.
He wondered if there was anything show ng other advertising
t hat brought people to Alaska and how much those industries
spent on top of what the state spent. Acting Comr ssioner
Parady replied that he would follow up on the question.

Representative Minoz asked for detail on proposed cuts to
the departnent. Acting Conm ssioner Parady replied that the
department's budget had just been published. The depart nent
had worked to reduce vacant positions and to reduce program
fundi ng when possible; sonme of the reductions were included
in various conponents of the departnment's funding streans,
but were not generally associated with staff reductions.

HANNAH LAGER, BUDGET MANAGER, DEPARTMENT OF COMVERCE

COMMUNITY AND ECONOM C DEVELOPMENT, replied that the
department had focused on general fund cuts to reach the
target requested by the admi nistration. Additionally, DCCED
had | ooked at places where the budget was over inflated by
things like receipts that it was not actually collecting.

The department had focused on where it had absorbed costs
and duties perfornmed by positions it was not filling;, sone
had not been filled in quite sonme tine and had been
del eted. She relayed that nore detail was published online.

The strategy had been to nake reductions while mnimzing
the inpact on existing enployees and naxim zing services
provided to the public.

Representati ve Munoz asked how many positions Ms. Lager was
speaking about. M. Lager replied that four full-tine
positions had been deleted from the budget and there were
many the departmnment was planning to hold vacant.

Representative Minoz asked for the anticipated ASM and
tourism marketing increnments in the governor's anended
budget. M. Lager replied that the tourism budget had
initially been $15.2 mllion (general funds), which had
been reduced to approximately $12.5 mllion. The proposed
ASM budget had been reduced from $7.3 mllion to $6.3
mllion.

House Fi nance Conmmittee 18 02/05/15 1:32 P. M



Co- Chai r Neurman t hanked t he depart ment for its
present ati on.

2:29:39 PM
AT EASE

2:33:16 PM
RECONVENED

AFY 15 GOVERNOR S SUPPLEMENTAL BUDGET OVERVI EW

2:33:22 PM

PAT PITNEY, DI RECTOR, OFFICE OF MANAGEMENT AND BUDCGET
(OVMB), OFFICE OF THE GOVERNCR, provided a chart titled
"FY2015 Supplenental Bill" (copy on file). She addressed
page 1 and relayed that the nost significant item was on
line 6 for the production, sale, and use of narijuana under
the Al coholic Beverage Control (ABC) Board for $785, 000.
The page included three smaller increnments on lines 2, 4,
and 5 related to Affordable Care Act reporting conpliance
and caseload for the Public Defender Agency and Ofice of
Publ i ¢ Advocacy.

Co-Chair Neuman noted that sonme additional noney had been
allocated to caseworkers in a bill sponsored by
Representative Gara. He noted that noney had been all ocated
to foster care recipients aged 16 to 21; there had been
addi tional costs associated due to the casel oad backl og and
[itigation.

Representati ve Kawasaki remar ked t hat t he DCCED
conmi ssioner had testified that if the increnent for the
ABC Board was not approved it would be an unallocated cut
to the departnent. He noted that the increnent related to
t he production, sale, and use of marijuana did not show the
revenue side of the equation. He wondered if revenue would
be reflected in the FY 16 budget. Ms. Pitney indicated that
revenue had not been estimated for FY 16. Revenue woul d not
be reflected in the chart currently before the conmttee
because it pertained only to the FY 15 suppl enental budget.
The potential revenue had been estimated at $2 million to
$20 million. The adm nistration was assuming that the first
year of inplenentation would not be cost neutral; it was
anticipated that nmuch would be learned in the first four to
six nonths of the inplenentation. She hoped that the FY 16

House Fi nance Conmmittee 19 02/05/15 1:32 P. M



suppl enental would show a $20 mllion revenue line item
[related to marijuana revenue].

2:38:17 PM

Representative WIson pointed to lines 4 and 5 on page 1
related to the Ofice of Public Advocacy and Public
Def ender Agency casel oad backl ogs. She asked if any headway
had been made on the backlog or if it <continued to
i ncrease. She presuned an increnent would be included in
the budget the followng year. She requested additional
i nformati on.

Co- Chair Neunman believed a backl og had been created because
there were new applicants in the foster care program that
had been expanded via |egislation. He stated that
Representative Gara woul d know nore about the situation.

Ms. Pitney relayed that she would follow up on
Representative Wl son's question.

Representative Gattis asked about a $2 nmillion education
increment on page 1, line 7. She wondered how the $2
mllion figure had been derived. Additionally, she wondered
how the noney would be distributed (e.g. based on Average
Dai |y Menbershi p). She wondered how and where the increnent
would fit in the budget.

Ms. Pitney answered that the Public School Trust Fund
contained earnings, which were reinvested back into the
fund; the noney was spent first from the trust and then
from the general fund for any additional amount. She
expl ained that when $2 nillion was put into the trust, it
nmeant $2 million less would be taken from the general fund.
The increnent accounted for the earnings that were
currently accrued into the trust.

Ms. Pitney noved to page 2, line 8 that contained an
increment for the wood bison transport. She detailed that
| egi sl ation had been worked on the prior session to allow
receipt of federal funds to conduct the wood bison
transport. She | ooked at lines 9 through 11 related to the
growing nunber of children in foster care due to
legislation that increased the maxinum age children were
allowed to remain in care. The request was based on program
changes and in the acceptance of social security incone
associated with clients invol ved.

House Fi nance Conmmittee 20 02/05/15 1:32 P. M



Representative Gara asked for verification that the
increment was based on an increase in the nunber of kids
comng into care. Ms. Pitney replied in the affirmative.
She detailed that |ine 9 represented additional revenue
collected as well and the ability to accept the revenue.

2:42: 34 PM

Representative Gara spoke to the purpose of t he
suppl ement al budget. He addressed foster care and di scussed
that social workers with caseloads that were 50 percent
hi gher than they could handle, could not get their jobs
done. The social workers could not get kids into adoption

whi ch woul d save the state noney. He wondered why there was
never supplenmental noney to help with the issue.

Ms. Pitney replied that line 11 related to the grow ng
nunber of subsi di zed adopti ons and guardi anshi ps.

Representative Gara remarked that there were currently 849
kids waiting for adoption.

Representative WIlson stated that the state was providing
funds to parents once a child was adopted and the nunber
was increasing. She wondered at what age in a child's life
the state stopped paying the funds. She wondered how nany
children were included in the category. She believed it
should be possible to ascertain a nore accurate cost

figure. She remarked that the cost was another $1.7 nillion
in the current year. She noted the cost was for children
who had been adopted. She assunmed the state would still pay

t he amount annual | y.

Ms. Pitney replied that she would follow up on the
guestion. She noved to page 3, line 12 that contained the
| argest supplenental item which totaled $92 nmillion for
Medi cai d advanced paynents. She detailed that the item
related to charges incurred in FY 14 as a result of system
[imtations at the tine. She el aborated that t he
expenditures had not been booked or charged relative to the
financial statenent; therefore, the charges had rolled over
to FY 15 and $114 nmillion in general fund for Medicaid had
| apsed in FY 14. She explained that the noney had existed
in FY 14 if the state had been able to finalize and record
the paynents and charges, but the Division of Legislative
Budget and Audit had determned there had not been a
sufficient record to close the itens in FY 14.

House Fi nance Committee 21 02/05/15 1:32 P. M



Vi ce-Chair Saddler asked for confirmation that the state
woul d depend on the system for processing Medicaid clains
in the future. Ms. Pitney replied in the affirmative.

Vi ce-Chair Saddl er wondered if it would be wise to expand
Medi cai d before the system problens were rectified in order
to avoid simlar issues in the future. Ms. Pitney replied
that the Departnment of Health and Social Services (DHSS)
was working diligently on ensuring the system was up and
runni ng. She stated that an efficiently running system was
central to business and to the state's nedical providers;
ensuring the system was running correctly well in advance
of the expansion date was of the highest priority.

2:47: 12 PM

Vi ce-Chair Saddl er wondered if from a budget perspective it
woul d be helpful to avoid Medicaid expansion until the
state was positive the system was working correctly. M.
Pitney answered that the savings the state would receive
through Medicaid expansion and the service delivery
provided nmade it a smart and critical option from the
adm nistration's policy standpoint. She detailed that the
system was a critical point of need and the agency was
working to ensure it was running correctly. She had
confi dence DHSS woul d have the system up and runni ng.

Vi ce-Chair Saddler wondered if M. Pitney would advocate
for expansion if the system was not up and running. M.
Pitney would follow up on the question.

Representative Kawasaki spoke to the Medicaid advance
paynments. He asked for verification that an error by Xerox
(when the system had been adopted 1.5 years ago) had led to
a significant nunber of l|ate paynents to providers. He
wondered if the situation involving Xerox was part of the
problem M. Pitney answered in the affirmative.

Represent ati ve Kawasaki wondered if noney would potentially
conme back to the state in some formas a result of ongoing
di scussions with Xerox. Ms. Pitney replied that she did not
know about the potential of noney being returned to the
state or about the current status of discussions with the
conpany. She relayed that the discussions were ongoing and
noted the urgency of the situation.

House Fi nance Committee 22 02/05/15 1:32 P. M



Co- Chair Neunan added that separately from the line item
under discussion, there were sone |awsuits underway through
DHSS. He noted the line item included noney that had been
approved by the legislature for Medicaid expenditures
t hrough paynent reinbursenent. He detailed that there had
been an accounting problem the noney had still been
deposited into the bank. He furthered that because of the
accounting problem it had becone an FY 15 issue. The item
entail ed noney com ng out of the bank to cover the costs.

2:50: 08 PM

Representative Gara discussed that there had been a nunber
of conputer systens that had not worked. He asked M.
Pitney to let the conmttee know if there was an indemity
provision to protect the state when the systenms did not
function correctly. He remarked that committee nenbers were
aware of providers that could potentially sue the state
because they had gone out of business as a result of
nonpaynent . He opined that the state's progranm ng
contracts should include indemity provisions to provide
protection when systens did not work.

Co-Chair Neuman relayed that the DHSS subconmittee would
hear about the Medicaid Managenent Information Systens
updat es and contracts.

Representative Munoz noted that the item description stated
that the expenditures were not eligible for a federal
match. She wondered if it was due to the problenms with the
conputer system or other issues. M. Pitney deferred the
guestion to DHSS.

MARGARET BRODI E, DI RECTOR, DVISSON O HEALTH CARE
SERVI CES, DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND SOCI AL SERVI CES, replied
that DHSS had worked with the Centers for Medicare and
Medi caid Services (CM5) to claimthe advances federally and
to receive the federal share. She explained that DHSS had
wor ked everything out with CM5 and the Departnment of
Adm nistration and had made the claim federally; however
D vision of Legislative Budget and Audit had told DHSS that
it did not neet the level in a new fiscal year; therefore,
the entries had been reversed. The state would receive
federal match for all of the clains.

2:53: 04 PM

House Fi nance Conmmittee 23 02/05/15 1:32 P. M



Representative Gara asked Ms. Brodie if there were
indemmity agreenments to keep the state off the hook if
probl ems were caused by progranms it purchased. M. Brodie
replied that the state did not have indemity cl auses.
Al ternatively, it had liquidated danages; there was a
hearing in front of an adm nistrative |aw judge on February
17 [2015] to determne whether the |I|iquidated danages
applied. She explained that it was a way to get sone of the
state's noney back and it would not prevent the state from
its ability to claim the actual damages. She had outlined
all of the actual damges, which far outweighed the
I i qui dat ed damages.

Ms. Pitney returned to page 3, lines 13 through 16
pertaining to managenent fees associated w th investnent
earnings on particular funds. She classified the itens as
"good news" paynents. The increase in fees for managenent
under the Departnment of Revenue (DOR) had resulted from a
positive earnings year. She turned to page 4, line 17
associated with the Al aska Minicipal Bond Bank Authority
(AMBBA). She detailed that there were additional regulatory
envi ronment expenses associated with the oversight of the
muni ci pal bond narket; the item was to account for the
costs within AMBBA s funding authority. Lines 18 through 20
were technical adjustnents related to the Al aska Retirenent
Managenent Board and a year-end bal ancing of the retirenent
syst ens; al | of the items were net-zero technica
adjustnents. Line 22 reflected that Edna Bay had becone an
organi zed community; an organi zational grant was provided
to the newly forned city to help wth the cost of
formation.

Co- Chair Neuman asked if the grant was provided by statute.
Ms. Pi t ney replied t hat t he or gani zat i onal gr ant
specification for a newy forned city was included in AS
29. 05. 180.

2:56: 56 PM

Ms. Pitney turned to page 5, line 25. She explained that
Division of Legislative Budget and Audit had done the
single audit for the federal prograns until the present

year. The division had requested that the adm nistration
hire a third-party audit firm to do the single audit for
DHSS s federal prograns. The request represented the cost
of the single audit. She relayed that she had m stakenly

House Fi nance Committee 24 02/05/15 1:32 P. M



reported to the Senate Finance Committee that the item was
for a three-year contract.

Co-Chair Neuman asked for verification that the item
represented the cost for a single year. Ms. Pitney replied
in the affirmati ve.

Vice-Chair Saddler asked if it was I|ess expensive to
contract out for the audit versus doing the work in house.
Ms. Pitney replied that she would have to consult with the
Division of Legislative Budget and Audit to determne
whet her contracting out was |ess expensive. She relayed
that the division felt the audit needed a Ilevel of
attention and expertise that had been hard to achi eve under
the former system

Vi ce-Chair Saddler would enable the division to catch up on
t he backlog of audits and allow it to take on the audit for
DHSS' s federal progranms again in the future. M. Pitney
woul d replied that she would follow up on the question with
DHSS and the Division of Legislative Budget and Audit.

SANA EFI RD, ASSI STANT COWM SSI ONER, DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH
AND SOCI AL SERVICES, replied that the backlog would be in
the Division of Legislative Budget and Audit and not DHSS.
She asked for clarification on the question.

Vi ce-Chair Saddler wondered if outsourcing the audit for a
while would allow the work to be brought back in house once
the backlog had been addressed. M. Efird believed the
backlog was for the Division of Legislative Budget and
Audit. She added that the line item would give DHSS the
opportunity to work with a contractor with expertise in all
of the departnent's |arge federal prograns.

Representati ve Kawasaki understood that Division of
Legi slative Budget and Audit would typically perform the
audit; therefore, he wondered why the request was not being
requested through the legislature. Ms. Pitney replied that
it could be. The Division of Legislative Budget and Audit
had asked the admi nistration to manage the contract and its
funding. She stated that the presunption was that the cost
of the audit would be the sane; essentially it was a
transfer of costs.

3:01:13 PM

House Fi nance Conmmittee 25 02/05/15 1:32 P. M



Representative WIlson surmsed that the state was auditing
f eder al progr anms to ensure t he noney was spent
appropriately. She stated that in the past there had been
nmoney in the federal funds designated specifically for
audits. She wondered why the noney would not cone from
federal funds.

Ms. Efird replied that she did not know the percentage of
conpliance for each of the federal grants or what would be
avai l able for audits in each grant. The departnment was able
to collect sone federal funds through its (DHSS) cost
all ocation public assistance plan. She believed the |ine
item represented the amount of noney it had cost the
Di vision of Legislative Budget and Audit based on the hours
it had spent on the audit.

Representative WIson thought that a portion of federal
funds was supposed to be reserved for audits. For exanple,
a certain percentage of a $1 mllion grant was reserved for
audits. She wondered where the noney went. M. Efird would
follow up with the information

Ms. Pitney briefly highlighted the cost associated with a
recent settlenment agreenment with the Al aska Correctional
O ficers Association on page 5, |line 26

Co-Chair Neuman asked for further detail. M. Pitney
replied that the item represented cost incurred from a
previous case that had been brought to the state and
settled. She explained that the Senate Finance Commttee
had requested information on |essons learned in order to
avoid a simlar settlement in the future.

Co-Chair Neuman noted that the issue went back to |abor
negoti ati ons between 8-hour and 12-hour shifts. He believed
DOA had concerns about vacation tine that was accrued with
over tinme; therefore, it had gone to arbitration.

Vice-Chair Saddler wondered if it was a settlenent or a
result of arbitration. Ms. Pitney would follow up on where
it had been in the process. She detailed that it had been a
settlenment versus a judgenent or claim She did not know if
t here had been court hearings or other.

Co- Chair Neuman asked Representative Edgnon to ook into
t he issue.

House Fi nance Conmmittee 26 02/05/15 1:32 P. M



3:05:15 PM

Ms. Pitney noved to item 27 on page 5 related to the
Emergi ng Energy Technology Project. She detailed that the
$345,000 in federal funds was receipt authority for
additional federal funds that were available, but could not
be used without additional receipt authority. She | ooked at
item 28 related to the repeal two pieces of the O mat
Nevada, Inc. Munt Spurr Geothermal Project. She el aborated
that the general fund portion was reappropriated in the FY
16 capital budget; the other portion related to designated
general funds.

Co- Chair Neuman asked for the total funds that had gone out
in the grant. He believed there had been $20 million to $25
mllion. Ms. Pitney replied that the total had been $25
mllion.

Co- Chair Neuman observed that $23 nillion had been used. He
wondered if anything had been |earned. Ms. Pitney answered
that quite a bit had been |earned, but the cost of getting
to the energy site and of transmtting the energy to
consuners was past the point of being econom cal.

Co-Chair Neuman noted that the cost was $0.17 per kilowatt
to get the energy to Beluga, Alaska, which was what he
al ready paid in Big Lake.

Representative Quttenberg discussed that when he had first
read the line item he had surm sed that a grant had been
awarded, but no hot water source had been |ocated. He now
under st ood that an econonical source of hot water had not
been found.

Ms. Pitney answered that prom sing geothernmal sources had
been | ocated. She reasoned that if there had been sonething
el se the conmpany wanted to do on top of the geothernmal
source, it would probably have been worth the cost. She

noved to page 6, line 29. The line item was a net zero and
was a reappropriation on the bill associated with the
Interior gas project. She elaborated that in the origina
bill the noney had been specific to a North Slope gas

solution; the item expanded the scope of the project to
allow for in-state gas sol utions.

Co- Chair Neuman asked why the increnent was included in the
suppl emental as opposed to introducing legislation to

House Fi nance Committee 27 02/05/15 1:32 P. M



address the issue. Ms. Pitney replied that the devel opnent
was relatively new The administration believed the item
was appropriate for the supplenental. She noted that
anended |anguage would also be necessary. She explained
that the item had been included in the supplenental due to
the timng. She stated that it was possible additional
| egi sl ati on coul d be needed.

3:09: 32 PM

Representative WIson asked for verification that the line
item was outside of |egislation passed by the |egislature.
Ms. Pitney replied that the anobunt had been included in
| egi slation that had passed and had been reflected in the
overal | budget.

Representative WIlson believed that if the increnment was
associated with the legislation, the |egislation needed to
change to reflect what the project may have to be instead
of including the itemin the suppl enental.

Representative Kawasaki referred to the line item
description, which listed the section and SLA2013 rel ated
specifically to the Al aska Industrial Developnent and
Export Authority (AIDEA) Sustainable Energy Transm ssion
and Supply fund and the reappropriation. He stated that the
only controversial |anguage was related to North Slope
natural gas. He wondered if the $57.5 million bal ance woul d
hi nder AIDEA' s ongoing due diligence project if the item
was not included in the supplenental budget. He wondered if
it was necessary to provide the funds early because the
$57.5 mllion was part of the |anguage.

Ms. Pitney replied that the adm nistration recognized that
t he suppl enental budget ran at approxi mately the sane pace
as the capital budget. She elaborated that including the
project within the supplenmental was a transparent way to
get the information out. The admnistration also expected
it to take a revision of the legislation. The timng had
been anticipated that it would be at the end of session
before the |egislation was passed; the project was noving
forward, but no action would be taken outside of the
exi sting authority.

Representati ve Kawasaki wondered if the |anguage speaking

to the North Slope in particular in SB 23 [legislation
passed by the legislature in 2013 related to AIDEA and

House Fi nance Conmmittee 28 02/05/15 1:32 P. M



Liquid Natural Gas project financing] and in the capital
budget section hanpered AIDEA' s ability to discuss the
ongoi ng negotiations on the purchase of Pentex [Pentex
Al aska Natural Gas Conpany, LLC]. Alternatively, he asked
if AIDEA could act on its own.

Co- Chair Neuman noted that AIDEA acted as a separate entity
and had its own board.

Ms. Pitney would follow up on the question at a | ater date.

Representative WIson asked about the last tinme |egislation
had been changed in a supplenental budget. She did not
recall the situation occurring in the past. She did not
want to start something they could be sorry about in the
future. Ms. Pitney replied that she would follow up on the
guesti on.

Co-Chair Neuman believed the occurrence may happen on a
regul ar basis. He reasoned that the |egislature approved
reappropriations frequently.

Ms. Pitney noved to a repeal of the Alaska Digital Teaching
Initiative on line 30, page 6. She relayed that the
existing program could be managed wthout adding an
addi tional program The administration believed it would be
good to stop the program before it got started. Lines 31
and 32 (pages 6 and 7) related to the Departnent of
Environnental Conservation (DEC). She detailed that DEC
provi ded several grants for sewer and water projects; there
were currently grants out to a few comunities. Line 31 was
a reappropriation of funding remaining from conpleted
projects. The remaining funds were pooled and deposited
into the Spill Prevention and Response (SPAR) account. She
expl ai ned that the account ran on a $0.05 per barrel of oil
surcharge on oil running through the Trans-Al aska Pipeline
System (TAPS). She furthered that when there had been 2
mllion barrels of oil running through TAPS it had been
sufficient to cover the program however, production had
declined and 500 thousand barrels was not sufficient to
cover the program The reappropriation would buy tine to
develop a nore holistic approach to manage SPAR duties. She
added that the increnent would only provide tenporary
sol uti on.

3:16: 32 PM

House Fi nance Conmmittee 29 02/05/15 1:32 P. M



Co- Chair Neunman remarked that the SPAR fund was currently
enpty due to a decline in oil throughput. He explained that
t he surcharge had not been changed in a nunber of years.

Representative WIson wondered if the funds had matched
federal funds for sewer and water for small comunities.
She specifically nmentioned that funds had been allocated to
North Pole for sewer upgrades. She wondered if the state
was sweeping only state dollars into the SPAR account and
if sone federal matching funds had been | ost.

Ms. Pitney replied that the line item represented the
unspent, unobligated bal ance of general funds that had been
designated to projects. She explained that if there was a
mat ch, it was garnered based on the cost of the project.

Representative WIlson asked if sonme federal matching funds
had remained after the conpletion of the projects. She
wonder ed what had come of any renmining federal funds.

Ms. Pitney answered that federal matching funds were given
when the state spent its portion of the funds; if the state
funds were not spent, the match was not received. She
relayed that traditionally (under nore positive financial
environnments) comunities asked for remaining funds (i.e.
$25,000 to $50,000) to be reappropriated to another project
in their area, which may or nmy not have any federal
opportunity. An alternative policy option would be to pool
the remaining funds for use on a water and sewer project in
the next conmmunity. She explained that the increnent was a
way to use existing resources to cover the SPAR account
shortfall at present, which would give the state nore tine
to determine a nore holistic solution.

Representative WIson asked if federal funds would have
been available for a water and sewer project in another
cormunity if the state elected to use renmining project
funds for that purpose. She was curious how much noney
could have been utilized for the purpose. She understood it
had been a choice, but she thought the state had given up
federal funds that were not reflected on the handout.

3:21: 03 PM

Co- Chair Neuman noted that there was additional background
mat eri al avail able for nenbers to review.

House Fi nance Conmmittee 30 02/05/15 1:32 P. M



Ms. Pitney pointed to judgnents and settlenents on |lines 33
and 34 (page 7); line 33 related to actual judgnments and
settlenments and line 34 was for any judgenents and
settlements prior to the end of FY 15. Line 35 expanded the
scope of Departnent of Public Safety funds for the Al aska
Public Safety Information Network to other information
technology. Line 36 was a $3 nillion increnent for any
additional fire suppression funding for FY 15. Line 37
allowed for novenent in the percentages called for in the
fuel trigger mechanism She explained that the fuel trigger
mechani sm set a percent for each agency; sonetines the
bounds of the percentages did not accompbdate the actual
costs faced by an entity. The line item would allow an
expansi on of the boundary of percentages to nost closely
align the distribution of the fuel trigger nechanismto the
entities with the costs associ at ed.

Ms. Pitney addressed line 38, which reflected funds
| eftover from redistricting costs that would be deposited
back into the general fund. Lines 39 through 43 included
funds that would be deposited back into the general fund.
Line 39 reflected Ileftover funds from school debt
rei nbursenent projects that had been paid off; overall,
school debt reinbursenents had decreased by $5.4 nmillion.

Representati ve Pruitt asked what caused t he debt
rei nbursenent to go down.

3:24: 38 PM

Ms. Pitney replied that under the school debt reinbursenent
program a conmmunity passed a school bond. She explained
that if a comunity began paying debt service 20 years
back, the debt service was conpleted and had therefore the
project had fallen off the list of required debt service.
She explained that subsequently the obligation for school
debt rei nbursenment had decreased by $5.4 mllion.

Representative Pruitt asked for verification that the $5.4
mllion decrease was associated with one project. He noted
that Anchorage continued to add school debt; therefore, it
did not make sense to him that there was noney |left over
Ms. Pitney would follow up with the data. She believed
there would be a downward trend; schools that had been
built 20 years earlier would drop off the |ist.

House Fi nance Conmmittee 31 02/05/15 1:32 P. M



Representative Pruitt asked if the change in statute
i npl enented the prior year inpacted the reinbursenent rate.
He hoped the downward trend would continue because nothing
was being added. Ms. Pitney answered that she woul d provide
further informtion.

Ms. Pitney pointed to an interest transfer from the Al aska
Marine H ghway System stabilization fund. Lines 42 and 43
represented significant policy calls and reflected the
repeal of one-tine education funding that had been passed
in legislation the preceding session. She explained that
the $32 mllion in FY 16 would result in a 2.5 percent
decrease in K-12 funding (line 42). The reduction of $19
mllion in FY 17 was closer to a 1 percent reduction (line
43).

Co-Chair Neuman remarked that the two education funding
itens woul d have additional discussion going forward.

Ms. Pitney addressed ratifications on |lines 48 through 63.
She explained that the ratifications were prior year
expenses that had been accounted for; the lines reconciled
the expenses to the budget that had passed from an
accounting perspective and represented necessary technica
adj ust nent s.

HB 72 was HEARD and HELD in comrittee for further
consi derati on.

HB 73 was HEARD and HELD in commttee for further
consi derati on.

Co-Chair Neuman discussed the schedule for the follow ng
day.

#
ADJ OURNVENT

3:30: 08 PM

The neeting was adjourned at 3:30 p. m

House Fi nance Conmmittee 32 02/05/15 1:32 P. M



